


CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED         
Registered Office : 1/1, Camac Street                               
3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata ‐ 700 016                              

Tele : 22296351/55  
Website: www.chitrakutholdings.com E‐mail :info@chitrakutholdings.com 

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765 
========================================================================== 
 

 
(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE 31ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 

COMPANY TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2019) 
 

Name & Registered Address 
of Sole/First named Member:  
 
 
Joint Holders Name (If any) : 
 
 
Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID:   
 
No. of Equity Shares Held  : 
 
Dear Shareholder, 
 
Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility: 
 
Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility 
to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2019 at 11.00 A.M. at 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata - 700 016 
and at any adjournment thereof.  
 
The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to provide the e-voting facility. 
The e-voting facility is available at the link https://www.evotingindia.com. 
 
The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below: 
 

EVSN 
(Electronic Voting Sequence 

Number) 

User ID 
 

PAN / Sequence No. 
 

 
190826007 

 

  

 
The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 

27.09.2019 10.00 A.M. (IST) 29.09.2019 05.00 P.M. (IST) 

 
      Please read the instructions mentioned in the Notice before exercising your vote. 

 
For Chitrakut Holdings Ltd. 

 
 

Signature 
Name : Nitu Goel 

Designation : Company Secretary 
Place: Kolkata 
Date : 02.09.2019 
 
Encl: AGM Notice/Attendance Slip/Proxy Form/Ballot-Form/Annual Report 
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NOTICE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty first Annual General  meeting of  the 
members of Chitrakut Holdings Limited  will be  held at 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd 
Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata - 700 016, on Monday, the 30th day of  September, 2019 
at 11.00 A.M. to transact the following business: 
 
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 

2019 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date together 
with the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Smt Meena Devi Jain (DIN: 07125997), who 

retires by rotation, and being eligible offers herself for reappointment. 
 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi (DIN: 

00007503), who retires by rotation, and being eligible offers himself for 
reappointment. 

 
4. To re-appoint Auditor and to fix their remuneration. In this connection, to 

consider and, if  thought  fit, to pass the following resolution which will 
be  proposed  as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules framed 
thereunder, as amended from time to time, the company hereby ratifies the 
appointment of M/s Vasudeo & Associates FRN - 319299E),Chartered  
Accountants, 5, Fancy Lane, 3rd Floor, Room No.9, Kolkata – 700 001, as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the thirty-second AGM of 
the Company to be held in the year 2020 at such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 
Auditors.” 

 
 



CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED         
Registered Office : 1/1, Camac Street                               
3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata ‐ 700 016                              

Tele : 22296351/55  
Website: www.chitrakutholdings.com E‐mail :info@chitrakutholdings.com 

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765 
========================================================================== 
 

 
NOTES: 
 
1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

relating to Special Businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) is annexed hereto. 

 
 
2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 

ONE OR MORE PROXY (IES) TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF 
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act 
as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in aggregate 
not more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members 
holding more than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company may 
appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other 
Member. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, 
not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form 
is annexed to this Report. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, 
societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution / authority, 
as applicable. 

 
 
3. The Register of Members & Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 

closed from 24th day of September, 2019 to 30th day of September, 2019 (Both 
days inclusive). 

 
 
4. All requests for transfer of shares and allied matters along with the 

relevant transfer deeds and/or share certificates should be sent to the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, viz., Niche Technologies Pvt. 
Ltd. 

 
 
5. The Company’s shares are enlisted with NSDL and CDSL for participation into 

Electronic Depository System operated by them. Its shares are compulsorily to 
be traded in Electronic Form and the security bears code no. INE228E01011.  

 
6. Members   are   requested to notify immediately any change in their address 

to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company quoting their folio 
numbers, to ensure prompt service. 

 
 
7. Members holding shares in the same name under different folios are requested 

to apply for consolidation of such folios and send relevant Share 
Certificates to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. 

 
 
8. Members are requested to produce the enclosed Attendance Slip at the entrance 

of the Office and bring their copies of Annual Report to the meeting, as 
extra copies will not be supplied. 

 
 
9. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

relevant Rules made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other 
communications through electronic mode to those Members who have registered 
their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository. Members 
who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company can now 
register the same by writing to the Registrar of the Company,  
M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited,  
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3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No.7A & 7B, Kolkata - 700017 
10. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register their e-mail 

address with their Depository Participant(s) only. Members of the Company, 
who have registered their e-mail address, are entitled to receive such 
communication in physical form upon request. 

 
11. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent in 

electronic mode to Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company 
or the Depository Participant(s) unless the Members have registered their 
request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copy of the Notice of AGM, 
Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent to those Members who have 
not registered their e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository 
Participant(s). Members who have received the Notice of AGM, Annual Report 
and Attendance Slip in electronic mode are requested to print the Attendance 
Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the registration counter 
to attend the AGM. Members are requested to bring their admission slip along 
with copy of the Annual Report at the Annual General Meeting. 

 
12. Members seeking information regarding financial accounts of the Company are 

requested to write to the Company at least 7 (seven) days before the date of 
meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready. 

 
13. Re-appointment / Appointment of Directors: Pursuant to clause 49 of the 

Listing Regulations with the Stock Exchanges, the information in respect of 
Directors being re-appointment has been provided in the section of Corporate 
Governance incorporated elsewhere in the Annual Report. 

                                                       
14.  VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  
 
I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 
2015 and regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide 
members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed 
to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means 
and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility 
of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from 
a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided 
by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

 
II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at 

the AGM and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote 
by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-
voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled 
to cast their vote again. 

 
III. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under: 

 
(i) The remote e-voting period commences on 27.09.2019 10.00 A.M. and ends on          

29.09.2019 05.00 P.M.. During this period members’ of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date of 21.09.2019, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the 
vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be 
allowed to change it subsequently. 

 
(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 

www.evotingindia.com during the voting period 
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(iii) Click on “Shareholders” tab. 
 

(iv) Now Enter your User ID  
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company, excluding the special characters. 
 
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then 
your existing password is to be used.  

 
(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the 
sequence number in the PAN field. 

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter 
the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the 
first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. 
If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then 
enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with 
the depository or in the company records for your folio in 
dd/mm/yyyy format  

Bank 
Account 
Number 
(DBD) 

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat account
with the depository or in the company records for your folio. 

• Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to 
Login.  

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository 
or company then please enter the member-id / folio number 
in the Bank Account Number details field as mentioned in 
above instruction ( iv ). 

 
 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the 
Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form 
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting 
for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only 
for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. Chitrakut Holdings 
Ltd. on which you choose to vote. 

 



CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED         
Registered Office : 1/1, Camac Street                               
3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata ‐ 700 016                              

Tele : 22296351/55  
Website: www.chitrakutholdings.com E‐mail :info@chitrakutholdings.com 

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765 
========================================================================== 
 
 

 
 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the 
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and 
option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire 

Resolution details. 
 
(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on 

“SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 

modify your vote. 
 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on 
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 
 

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the 
User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xviii) Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians : 
• Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

and Custodians are required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves as Corporates.  

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the 
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user 
which should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance 
user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which 
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in 
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer 

the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at 
www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or contact them at 1800 200 5533 

 
(xx) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting 

available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded 
from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users can download the 
app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please 
follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile.  

 
15. Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, 

NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote 
through e-mail at navneet904@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on or before 23rd September, 2019 upto 5:00 
pm without which the vote shall not be treated as valid. 
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16. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of 
the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 
23rd September, 2019. A person who is not a member as on cut-off date should 
treat this notice for information purpose only. 

 
17.  The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose 

names appear in the register of members / depositories as at closing hours 
of business, on 16th August, 2019. 

 
18.  The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the 

cut-off date of 23rd September, 2019. The facility of e-voting would be 
provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of 
joint holders. 

 
19. Since the Company is required to provide members the facility to cast their 

vote by electronic means, shareholders of the Company, holding shares either 
in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 23rd 
September, 2019 and not casting their vote electronically, may only cast 
their vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

 
20. Notice of the AGM along with attendance slip, proxy form along with the 

process, instructions and the manner of conducting e-voting is being sent 
electronically to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the 
Company / Depository Participant(s). For members who request for a hard copy 
and for those who have not registered their email address, physical copies 
of the same are being sent through the permitted mode. 

 
21. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of 

the Notice / Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 23rd 
September, 2019 are requested to send the written / email communication to 
the Company at info@chitrakutholdings.com by mentioning their Folio No. / DP 
ID and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting.  

 
22. Mr. Navneet Jhunjhunwala, Practising Company Secretary, (Certificate of 

Practice Number 5184) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the remote e-voting process and voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent 
manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later than 3 days of conclusion of 
the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company or a person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith. 

 
23. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on 

the Company’s website www.chitrakutholdings.com and on the website of CDSL. 
The same will be communicated to the stock exchanges viz. The Calcutta Stock 
Exchange Ltd. and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd.   
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INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED AS PER THE LISTING REGULATIONS 
As required under the Listing Regulations, the particulars of Directors who are 
proposed to be appointed/re-appointed are given below: 
 
1.  Name    Mrs. Meena Devi Jain 
    Age    57 years 
    Qualification   Graduate 
    Expertise She has extensive experience in finance, 

investment, trading in Shares and securities and 
other fields since over 29 years.  

    Other Directorships  Nil 
 
2.  Name    Mr.Rajendra Kumar Saraogi 
    Age    57 years 
    Qualification   Graduate 
    Expertise He has extensive experience in finance, 

investment, trading in Shares and securities and 
other fields since over 31 years.  

    Other Directorships  3 (Three) 
 
 
*    Directorship held in Public Limited Company. 
 
 
 
 
Registered Office:       By Order of the Board  
1/1, Camac Street,           Nitu Goel  
3rd Floor, Suite No.7,      Company Secretary 
Kolkata – 700 016 
Dated : 02.09.2019 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting Hall) 

(Annual General Meeting – 30th September, 2019) 
I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday, 30th September, 2019 at 
11.00 AM at 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata – 700016 
 
Full Name of the member (In BLOCK LETTERS):…………………………………………………….................. 
Folio No………………………DP ID No……………………….Client ID No…………………………………… 
Full Name of Proxy (In BLOCK LETTERS): ………………………………………………………………….… 
Member/Proxy(s)Signature………………………………………………………………………………………… 

-------------------------------------------------------------tere here---------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

Form No. MGT--11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
CIN   :     L51909WB1988PLC044765 
Name of the Company :     CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
Registered Office  :     1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata - 700 016 
Name of the Members : 
Registered Address : 
E-Mail ID  : 
Folio No./Client No. : 
DP ID   : 
I/We, being the member(s) of …………………………………….shares of the above Company, hereby appoint. 
1. Name………………………………………………Address..………………………………………………. 

E-Mail ID : ……………………………………… Signature……………………………..……Or falling him  
2. Name………………………………………………Address..………………………………………………. 

E-Mail ID : ……………………………………… Signature………………………………..…Or falling him 
3. Name………………………………………………Address..………………………………………………. 

E-Mail ID : ……………………………………… Signature…………………………………Or falling him 
As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us on my/our behalf at the AGM of the Company, to be held on 
30th September, 2019 at 11.00 AM at 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Suite No.7, Kolkata - 700 016 and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution(s) as are indicated below: 

Resolution 
No. 

Resolution For Against 

1. Ordinary Resolution to Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Reports of Board
of Directors and Auditors 

  

2. Ordinary Resolution for Re-Appointment of Smt Meena Devi Jain (DIN: 07125997) who retires 
by rotation 

  

3. Ordinary Resolution for Re-Appointment of Shri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi (DIN : 00007503) 
who retires by rotation 

  

4. Ordinary Resolution for Appointment of Auditors and to fix their Remuneration   
 
 
Signed this………….Day of……………2019 
Signature of  Shareholder(s) Signature of proxy(s)…….…………………………… 
 
 
Notes: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement  of the meeting. 

 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 



CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 
 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirtieth Annual report on 
the business and operations of the Company together with Audited statements 
of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
The summarised financial results of the Company are given here under: 
 
                

Current Year Previous Year
` `

Profit before tax 1,382,366.84                    12,036,058.28              
Tax expense:
1) Current tax 600,000.00                       2,850,000.00                
2) Deferred tax (5,692.00)                          (29,988.00)                   
Tax for earlier year -                                    -                               
Profit (loss) for the period 788,058.84                       9,216,046.28                
 
                                
DIVIDEND 
With a view to conserving resources and building up reserves, your 
Directors do not recommend payment of Dividend for the year.  
 
STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 
Your directors are hopeful that the performance of the Company will improve 
in the coming year. 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
The general business conditions affecting business are expected to remain 
stable and company is expected to perform well. 
 
DEPOSITS 
The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the public covered 
under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
No amount has been transferred to the General Reserve. An amount equal to 
20% of Net Profit has been transferred to Statutory Reserve in accordance 
with the provisions of the RBI Act. 

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, 6 Board Meetings were 
held on 10th April, 2018, 30th May, 2018, 14th August, 2018, 14th November, 
2018, 14th February, 2019 and 1st March, 2019. The intervening gap between 
the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 
Attendance of directors at the Board Meetings [Whether attended (Yes/No)]: 
Board Meeting Date Mr.Rajendra 

Kumar 
Saraogi 
(DIN- 
00007503) 

Mr.Kailash 
Chand 
Saraogi 
(DIN- 
00007512) 

Mr.Ashok 
Kumar Jain 
(DIN- 
00007535) 

Mr.Mahendra 
Kumar Pandya 
(DIN- 
00007526) 

Ms.Meena 
Devi Jain 
(DIN- 
07125997) 

10th April, 2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
30th May, 2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
14th August, 2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
14th November, 2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
14th February, 2019 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
1st March, 2019 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
TOTAL 6 6 6 6 6 
 
 



INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
The Company has an Internal Control System, which has been designed to 
provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper 
accounting controls, monitoring of operations, protecting assets from 
unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring 
reliability of financial reporting.  
 
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT 
Auditors' Report contains no remark requiring explanation. 
 
At the 29th Annual General meeting held on September 20, 2017, the members 
had appointed M/s Vasudeo & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, 
having registration number 319299E as the statutory auditors of the Company 
for a period of 5 years upto March 31, 2022, subject to them ratifying the 
said appointment at every AGM. The Company has received a confirmation from 
M/s Vasudeo & Associates, Chartered Accountants, to the effect that their 
appointment, if made, at the ensuing AGM would be in terms of Sections 139 
and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. The Board 
proposes to the members to ratify the said appointment of M/s Vasudeo & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants. 
 
DIRECTORS  
 
Mr.Rajendra Kumar Saraogi and Mrs.Meena Devi Jain, Directors of the 
Company, retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for           
re-appointment. The Board recommends their reappointment at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. 
 
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent 
Director of the Company under Section 149(7)of the Companies Act, 2013 that 
the Independent Directors of the Company meet with the criteria of their 
Independence laid down in Section 149 (6). 
 
ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD 
The Board has made a formal evaluation of its own performance and that of 
its committees and individual directors as required under Section 134(3) 
(p) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
Since the Company is a Non Banking Finance Company, the disclosure 
regarding particulars of loans given, guarantees given and security 
provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
Particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company 
with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 in Form AOC-2 prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed hereto and forms a part of this report. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY  
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the 
financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of 
the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate 
and the date of the report. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS / 
TRIBUNALS  
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts 
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations. 
 
 



PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The overall remuneration payable to Directors, including Executive 
Directors, was within the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
The company has no activity relating to conservation of energy or 
technology absorption, details of which are required to be furnished in 
this report as per the provision of Section 134 (m) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO 
There were no foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year. 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, 
the Directors hereby confirm that:-  
 
(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st 

March, 2019, the applicable accounting standards, have been followed 
and there are no material departures from the same; 

(ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent  so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit of the Company for that period; 

(iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and 

(iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a 
‘going concern’ basis. 

(v) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively. 

(vi) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls 
are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
The Company has a defined Risk Management framework to identify, assess, 
monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks 
identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 
Extract of the Annual Return as on the financial year ended 31st March, 
2019 in Form MGT 9 is annexed hereto and forms a part of this report. 
 
 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT AND REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, a separate section titled ‘Corporate 
Governance’ has been included in this Annual Report, along with the Reports 
on ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ and ‘General Shareholder 
Information’. 
All Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the code of conduct for FY 2018-2019. A declaration to this effect 
signed by the Whole-time Director of the Company is included in this Annual 
Report.  
 



 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Navneet Jhunjhunwala of M/s            
N. Jhunjhunwala & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice 
(FCS No.6397, CP No.5184) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith. The same 
contains a qualification to the effect that no company secretary was 
appointed during the year 2018-2019. Other than this, the report contains 
no other qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer. 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Your Directors wish to convey their gratitude to the Company's clients, 
Bankers, Business Associates, Shareholders, well wishers and employees, for 
their valued and timely support and advice to your company during the year 
& look forward to their continued support.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place : Kolkata             For and on behalf of the Board 
Dated : 30.05.2019                   
 

 
 
 
Kailash Chand Saraogi 
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Name and Description of main products / servicesS. No. %  to total turnover of the 
company

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT

NIC Code of the 
Product/service

1/1, CAMAC STREET, 3RD FLOOR, KOLKATA - 700 016

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Whether listed company

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any.

YES
NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PVT.LTD. 'D-511, BAGREE MARKET, 5TH FLOOR, 71, 
B.R.B.BASU ROAD, KOLKATA - 700 001, PH.NO.033-2234-3576/ 033-2235-
7270/7271, E-MAIL : nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

12-07-88

Address of the Registered office  & contact details

L51909WB1988PLC044765CIN
Registration Date

 CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

Name of the Company

FORM NO. MGT 9

100

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

3

1

2

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Name and address of the Company

NIL

Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

CIN/GLNSN



Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

1,651,300  -              1,651,300  22.56% 1,651,300        -                  1,651,300  22.56% -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -                    -                  -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            

  1,651,300                 -     1,651,300 22.56%          1,651,300                      -     1,651,300 22.56% -            

-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            

               -                   -                  -   -                                     -                        -                  -   -               -            
  1,651,300                 -     1,651,300 22.56%          1,651,300                      -     1,651,300 22.56% -            

               -   -              -             -               -             -               -            
1. Institutions

c) Bodies Corp.
d) Any other
Sub Total (A) (2)

TOTAL (A)

% Change 
during the 

year    

(i)  Category-wise Share Holding
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on 31-March-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2019]

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

d) Bodies Corp.

a) Mutual Funds

b) Central Govt

Category of 
Shareholders

a) Individual/ HUF

(2) Foreign
a) NRI Individuals
b) Other Individuals

c) State Govt(s)

f) Any other

B. Public 
Sh h ldi

Sub Total (A) (1)

e) Banks / FI

IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 

                                                                                                    
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            

-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -             -               -            

-             -              -             -               -             -               -            
-             -              -             -               -                    -                  -             -               -            

-             5,039,998  5,039,998  68.85% -                    5,039,998       5,039,998  68.85% -            
-             -             -               -            

7.91%7.91% -                    578,700          578,700     

-               -            -               

-            

-             

-            

-              -             

-             -              -             -               e) Venture Capital 
Funds

-             

578,700     

-               

ii) Overseas

2. Non-Institutions

i) Indian

i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

a) Bodies Corp.

-             

-              h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

d) State Govt(s)

a) Mutual Funds

578,700      

c) Central Govt
b) Banks / FI

b) Individuals

g) FIIs

i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):-



-             -              -             -               -                    -                  -             -               -            
-             -             -               -            

-             -               -             -               -            
-             -               -             -               -            
-             -               -             -               -            
-             -               -             -               -            

-             5,668,698  5,668,698  77.44% -                    5,668,698       5,668,698  77.44% -            
-             5,668,698  5,668,698  77.44% -                    5,668,698       5,668,698  77.44% -            

1,651,300  5,668,698  7,319,998  100.00% 1,651,300        5,668,698       7,319,998  100.00% -            

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of 

the 
company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 BIMALA DEVI JAIN      143,400 1.96% -                               143,400 1.96% -               -            

2 DILIP KUMAR SARAOGI        60,000 0.82% -                                 60,000 0.82% -               -            

-             

-            

-            

50,000       0.68%

-               

-             

0.68% -                    50,000            

-            

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change 
in 

shareholdin
g during 
the year

-             -               

-               

50,000       

-             

Non Resident Indians

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify)

Grand Total (A+B+C)

SN

Clearing Members
Foreign Nationals

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs & 
ADRs

Foreign Bodies - D R
Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public (B)

50,000        -             

Overseas Corporate
Bodies

Trusts

Shareholder’s Name

-              

3 KAILASH CHAND SARAOGI        95,000 1.30% -                                 95,000 1.30% -               -            

4 MAHENDRA KUMAR JAIN      148,800 2.03% -                               148,800 2.03% -               -            

5 MAHENDRA KUMAR JAIN (HUF)      145,400 1.99% -                               145,400 1.99% -               -            

6 MEENA DEVI JAIN        91,000 1.24% -                                 91,000 1.24% -               -            

7 NAMITA JAIN      143,600 1.96% -                               143,600 1.96% -               -            

8 NEELAM JAIN      100,000 1.37% -                               100,000 1.37% -               -            

9 PRADIP KUMAR SARAOGI        70,000 0.96% -                                 70,000 0.96% -               -            

10 PREM LATA DEVI JAIN        75,000 1.02% -                                 75,000 1.02% -               -            

11 RAJENDRA KUMAR SARAOGI      173,000 2.36% -                               173,000 2.36% -               -            

12 RATAN DEVI JAIN      148,000 2.02% -                               148,000 2.02% -               -            

13 SHREE CHAND SARAOGI        65,100 0.89% -                                 65,100 0.89% -               -            

14      193,000 2.64% -                               193,000 2.64% -               
-            KAILASH CHAND SARAOGI & DILIP 

KUMAR SARAOGI



(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

22.56% 22.56%

-                  -            
22.56% 22.56%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

1 NETIKTA VYAPAAR PVT. LTD. 
8.88% 8.88%
0.00% 8.88%
0.00% 8.88%

2 BIPASHA VYAPAAR PVT. LTD. 
7.51% 7.51%
0.00% 7.51%
0.00% 7.51%

3 ROSHNI DISTRIBUTORS PVT  LTD  

At the beginning of the year                                 1,651,300                           1,651,300 
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Promoters Share 
holding during the year                                              -                                          -   

At the end of the year                                 1,651,300                           1,651,300 

SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

                             650,000 

At the beginning of the year                                    650,000 

                                             -   

Changes during the year
At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
At the end of the year

                                   550,000                              550,000 

                             550,000 

SN For each of the Top 10 
shareholders

Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

No. of shares % of total 
shares

                             650,000 
                                             -                                650,000 

                             550,000 

3 ROSHNI DISTRIBUTORS PVT. LTD. 
6.15% 6.15%
0.00% 6.15%
0.00% 6.15%

4 LARRY DEALERS PVT. LTD. 
5.69% 5.69%
0.00% 5.69%
0.00% 5.69%

5 NEMINATH VYAPAAR PVT. LTD. 
4.90% 4.90%
0.00% 4.90%
0.00% 4.90%

6 NITESH VYAPAAR PVT. LTD. 
4.78% 4.78%
0.00% 4.78%
0.00% 4.78%

                             416,666 
                             416,666 

                             350,000 

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

                                   416,666 

                             450,000 
                                             -   

At the end of the year

At the end of the year

Changes during the year

Changes during the year

                                             -   Changes during the year

                             358,333 

                                             -   

                                             -                                358,333 

                                   450,000                              450,000 

At the beginning of the year                                    358,333                              358,333 

                             450,000 

                             416,666 

At the beginning of the year                                    350,000                              350,000 
Changes during the year                              350,000 



7 SKYLIGHT VINIMAY PVT. LTD. 
4.44% 4.44%
0.00% 4.44%
0.00% 4.44%

8 TIRUMALA TRADE LINKS PVT. LTD. 
4.37% 4.37%
0.00% 4.37%
0.00% 4.37%

9 AAKANSHA TREXIM PVT. LTD. 
4.10% 4.10%
0.00% 4.10%
0.00% 4.10%

10 GRACE DEALERS PVT. LTD. 
4.10% 4.10%
0.00% 4.10%
0.00% 4.10%

At the beginning of the year

Changes during the year

At the beginning of the year                                    325,000                              325,000 
Changes during the year                                              -                                325,000 

                             325,000 

At the beginning of the year                                    320,000                              320,000 

At the end of the year                              320,000 
                                             -   

At the end of the year

                             300,000 

                             300,000 
Changes during the year                                              -   
At the end of the year

                             300,000 

                             300,000 

At the end of the year                              300,000 
Changes during the year                                              -   

                             320,000 

                             300,000 
At the beginning of the year                                    300,000 

                                   300,000 



(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

1 KAILASH CHAND SARAOGI
1.68% 1.68%
0.00% 1.68%
0.00% 1.68%

2 MEENA DEVI JAIN
1.61% 1.61%
0.00% 1.61%
0.00% 1.61%

3 RAJENDRA KUMAR SARAOGI
3.05% 3.05%
0.00% 3.05%
0.00% 3.05%

4 MAHENDRA KUMAR PANDYA
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%

5 ASHOK KUMAR JAIN
0.00% 0.00%
0 00% 0 00%

At the end of the year                              173,000 

                                   173,000                              173,000 
Changes during the year                                              -                                173,000 
At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year
                                             -                                  91,000 Changes during the year

                               91,000 

                               95,000 
                               95,000 

At the beginning of the year                                      91,000                                91,000 

Changes during the year                                                 

                                     95,000 At the beginning of the year
Changes during the year                                              -   
At the end of the year                                95,000 

Reason Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the 
year

No. of shares % of total 
shares

% of total 
shares

SN Shareholding of each 
Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel

Date

No. of shares

At the end of the year                                        -   

At the beginning of the year                                              -                                          -   

Changes during the year                                              -                                          -   

                                          

At the beginning of the year                                              -                                          -   

0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00%

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Total 
Amount

(Rs)

-                                    
-                                           -                                        -                                    

-                                        

-                                    

220.00                              

RAJENDRA KUMAR SARAOGI
WTD

Particulars of Remuneration

Name
Designation

G  l

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

1

* Addition
* Reduction
Net Change

i) Principal Amount

-                                        iii) Interest accrued but not due

-                                        

-                                   

-                                           

-                                           

220.00                                     

-                                   
-                                   

-                                           
-                                        

-                                   

Total (i+ii+iii)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

-                                   

-                                        -                                    

-                                    

ii) Interest due but not paid

-                                   -                                           

-                                   220.00                                     
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

-                                    
220.00                              

(Amt. Rs./Lacs)
Total Indebtedness

-                                        

ii)  Interest due but not paid

-                                   -                                           -                                        
iii)  Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

-                                   -                                           -                                        

Particulars

-                                   -                                           -                                        

Secured Loans excluding 
deposits

Unsecured Loans Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i)   Principal Amount -                                    

-                                    
-                                    -                                   -                                           -                                        

Changes during the year                                              -   

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

At the end of the year                                        -   
                                       -   

Gross salary1



-            

2 -            
3 -            

-            
-            
-            

5 -            
120,000    

B. Remuneration to other Directors N.A. 
SN. Total 

Amount

(Rs)

-            
-            
-            
-            
-            
-            
-            
-            

Other Non-Executive Directors

-            

Fee for attending board committee 
tiCommission

120,000    

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors

Others, please specify
T t l (2)                                     

-                                    -                                              -                                    

                                                                                  

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Fee for attending board committee 
ti

Others, please specify

2

Commission

-                                    

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-
tax Act, 1961

120,000                                      

1

4

120,000                                      

Stock Option

-  others, specify

Ceiling as per the Act

Independent Directors

Total (1)

Sweat Equity

Commission
-  as % of profit

Others, please specify
Total (A)

-            
-            

120,000    

Total (B)=(1+2)
Total (2)

-                                    
-                                    

-                                              -                                    
-                                              -                                    

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act



C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SN. Total 

Amount
MEENA DEVI JAIN (Rs)

Gross salary

-            

2 Stock Option -            
3 Sweat Equity -            

Commission
-  as % of profit -            
-  others, specify -            

5 Others, please specify -            
Total 240,000    

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NOT APPLICABLE

Penalty
Punishment

120,000                            120,000.00                                 

120,000                            

-                                    

240,000    

-            

4

1
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

CSCFO

120,000.00                                 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel

Authority [RD / NCLT/ 
COURT]

Appeal made, if any 
(give Details)

Name
Designation

NITU GOEL

Type Section of 
the 

Companies 
Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ Compounding 

fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Compounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT



Annexure ‘1’

PART ‘A’ – Subsidiaries- NIL
Sl. No. Particulars

1 Name of the Subsidiary
2 The Date since when the subsidiary was acquired

3
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 
company’s reporting period.

4
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

5 Share Capital
6 Reserves & Surplus
7 Total Assets
8 Total Liabilities
9 Details of Investments
10 Turnover
11 Profit Before Taxation
12 Provision for Taxation
13 Profit / (Loss) after Taxation
14 Proposed Dividend
15 % of shareholding

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations -NA
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NA

FORM AOC-1

 PART ‘B’ – Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associates and Joint

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

Sl. No. NameofAssociates/JointVentures NIL
1  Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired
3 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

No.
Amount of Investment in Associates/JointVenture
Extent of Holding %

4 Description of how there is significant influence
5 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
6 Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
7 Profit/ Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation
i.  Not Considered in Consolidation

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures  which are yet to commence operations -NA
2. Names ofassociates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NA

For and on Behalf of the Board

Ventures



1 None
(Rs./Lac)

2

Sl.
No. 

Name(s) of the
related party
and nature of
relationship

Nature of
contracts /

arrangements /
transactions

Duration of
contracts /

arrangements /
transactions

Salient features of
contracts / 

arrangements /
transactions, 
including

value, if any

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board /
Audit

Committee

Amount
paid as

advances,
if any

1

Ganeshmal Mohanlal
(Associate Concern)

Rent Given

Ongoing, subject

to renewal as per

contractual 

terms

0.12 ‐ ‐

2

G.M.Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
(Associate Concern) Loan Taken

Loan Repaid
Interest Paid

Purchase of Investment

Ongoing, subject

to renewal as per

contractual 

terms

220.00
220.00
0.28
‐

‐ ‐

3
Rajendra Kumar Saraogi
(Whole‐time Director) Managerial Remuneration

5Yrs
1.20 ‐ ‐

4
Meena Devi Jain
(Director & CFO) Managerial Remuneration 5 Yrs 1.20 ‐ ‐

5

Nitu Goel

Remuneration

Ongoing, subject

to renewal as per

contractual 

terms

1.20 ‐ ‐

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

FORM‐AOC‐2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub‐section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub‐section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis



CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
1. BRIEF STATEMENT ON THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
    ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
At Chitrakut Holdings Limited (CHL), we believe that corporate governance is a continuous journey 
towards sustainable value creation for all the stakeholders, which is driven by our values of integrity, 
team focus, structured innovation, implementation, performance and client focus. 
 
The commitment of the CHL to the highest standards of good corporate governance practices 
predates SEBI and the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015’). Ethical dealings, 
transparency, fairness, disclosure and accountability are the main thrust of the working of CHL. 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
    -------------------------------- 
In keeping with the commitment of the Management to the principle of integrity and transparency in 
business operations for good corporate governance, the Company’s policy is to have an appropriate 
blend of executive and independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board and to 
separate the Board functions of governance and management. 
 
The members of the Board of Directors of the Company are eminent personalities from various fields 
and are entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and 
performance of the Company. The Board of Directors is responsible for and committed to sound 
principles of Corporate Governance in the Company. 
 
The Board of Directors comprises One Executive Director and Four Non-Executive Directors. The 
executive promoter director is Sri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi. Independent Non-executive Directors 
are Sri Ashok Kumar Jain and Sri Mahendra Kumar Pandya. Non-executive promoter directors are 
Sri Kailash Chand Saraogi and Smt. Meena Devi Jain.  
  
Smt. Nitu Goel, company secretary, is also the compliance officer of the Company. 
 
Smt. Ruchi Jain is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company. 
 
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the listing requirements. 
 
The Board reviews and approves strategy and oversees the actions and results of management to 
ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing stakeholder value are met. 
 
There were no materially relevant pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive 
Directors vis-à-vis the Company during the year. 
 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 6 times on: 10th April, 2018, 30th May, 
2018, 14th August, 2018, 14th November, 2018, 14th February, 2019 and 1st March, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Name of Director  Type  Executive/  Number of Number of Whether 
      Non-executive   meetings other  attended 
         attended Directorships*  last AGM 
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saraogi Promoter Executive   6  3 Yes 
Mr. Kailash Chand Saraogi Promoter Non-executive   6  1 Yes 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Pandya  Independent Non-executive     6  --- Yes   
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain  Independent Non-executive     6  1 Yes  
Ms. Meena Devi Jain  Promoter Non-executive    6  --- Yes   
 
*    Directorship held in Public Limited Company. 
 
 
    Directorships     Committee Positions in 
          Listed & Unlisted public 
          Limited companies 
Name of Director  In listed In unlisted In private As Chairman As Member 
    companies public  limited   
      companies companies  
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saraogi 1  3      14  -  1 
Mr. Kailash Chand Saraogi 1  1      15  -  -  
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Pandya 1  -      14  2  - 
Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain  1  1      10  -  2  
Ms. Meena Devi Jain  1  -      -  -  2  
 
Note: For the purpose of considering the limit of the committees on which a director can serve, all 
public limited companies, whether listed or not, have been included and all other companies 
including private limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under section 8 of 
the Companies Act, 2013/section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been excluded. Only audit 
committee and stakeholders relationship committee are considered for the purpose of reckoning 
committee positions. 
 
Meeting of Independent Directors: 
Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule IV of the Act requires the Independent Directors of the 
Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of non-independent directors 
and members of the management. The Independent Directors of the Company met on March 30, 
2019, pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. 
 
3. INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS’ RE-APPOINTMENT / APPOINTMENT 
   -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Smt.Meena Devi Jain and Shri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi are retiring by rotation in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. Their brief 
particulars are as under: 
1.  Name   Mrs. Meena Devi Jain 
    Age    57 years 
    Qualification  Graduate 
    Expertise  She has extensive experience in finance, investment, trading in Shares  

and securities and other fields since over 29 years.  
    Other Directorships  Nil 
 
 



2.  Name   Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saraogi 
    Age:    57 years 
    Qualification:  B.Com  
    Expertise:   He has extensive experience in finance, investment, trading in Shares 

and securities and other fields since over 31 years.  
    Other Directorships  3 (Three) 
 
*    Directorship held in Public Limited Company. 
 
 
4. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
    ---------------------------- 
 
The Audit Committee reviews the financial accounting policies, adequacy of internal control systems 
and systems audit and interacts with the statutory auditors and internal auditors. Besides, the 
Committee reviews the audit plans, interim and annual financial results, management discussion and 
analysis of financial condition and results of operations, related party transactions, observations of 
the management and internal / external auditors on internal control and follow-up reports of the 
management. 
 
The Board reviews the working of the Committee from time to time to bring about greater 
effectiveness in order to comply with the various requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Listing Regulations and the NBFC Regulations. 
 
As on 31st March, 2019, the Audit Committee comprised of 3 Non-executive Directors, Shri 
Mahendra Kumar Pandya, Shri Ashok Kumar Jain and Smt Meena Devi Jain. The Committee is 
chaired by Shri Mahendra Kumar Pandya, Independent Non-executive Director, who possesses the 
necessary financial background. 
During the year, the Committee met 4 times on: 30.05.2018, 14.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 14.02.2019 
 
Composition of the Committee and attendance of the members are as follows: 
 
Name of the Director      No. of Meetings Attended 
  Shri Mahendra Kumar Pandya      4 
  Shri Ashok Kumar Jain       4 
  Smt Meena Devi Jain       4 
 
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE  
    ----------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of CHL consists of One Executive Director and Three Non-
Executive Directors two of whom are Independent. The constitution and composition of the 
Committee is in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations.  
 
 Composition of the Committee and the attendance of the members are as follows: 

 
Name of the Director     No. of Meeting Attended 
Sri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi     Nil 
Sri Mahendra Kumar Pandya    Nil 
Sri Ashok Kumar Jain     Nil 
Smt. Meena Devi Jain     Nil 

 



No investor compliant was received during the year and none was pending unresolved as on 31st 
March, 2019.  
  
6. SHARE TRANSFER 
    -------------------------- 
The  Company has appointed M/s Niche Technologies (P)  Ltd. as Registrar and share transfer agent 
for  share  transfer  in physical and demat  form Shri Rajendra Kumar Saraogi, Promoter Executive 
Director and Shri Kailash Chand Saraogi, Promoter Non-executive Director have been authorized to 
approve the transfers and transmissions of shares, securities, debentures, etc., issue of duplicate share 
certificates, consolidation and sub-division of shares and investors’ grievance. The 
transfers/transmissions of shares are approved at least once in a fortnight. There were no share 
transfer requests pending as at March 31, 2019. 
 
7. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
    ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
The Company has constituted a Remuneration committee to  look into  the various elements of 
remuneration package of all the directors, etc. This committee presently  comprises  of Directors  Sri 
Mahendra Kumar Pandya and Sri Ashok Kumar Jain. Sri Mahendra Kumar Pandya, non-executive 
director, is the Chairman of the committee. The Committee evaluates compensation and benefits for 
Executive Directors. 
 
8. POLICIES, CODE OF CONDUCT AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES  
    ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Code of Conduct: 
The Listing Regulations require listed companies to lay down a code of conduct for directors and 
senior management, incorporating duties of directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Company has a Board approved code of conduct for all Board members and Senior 
Management of the Company. The said code has been placed on the Company’s website 
https://www.chitrakutholdings.com. 
All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code 
for the year ended 31 March 2019. A declaration to this effect signed by the Whole time Director is 
given elsewhere in this Annual Report. 
 
Vigil Mechanism Framework/Whistle Blower Mechanism: 
Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Company has a Board 
approved whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism to enable directors and employees to report to the 
Management their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. 
This mechanism provides safeguards against victimisation of directors/employees who avail of the 
mechanism and provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional 
cases. 
The whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism has been appropriately communicated to the employees 
within the organisation and has been put on the Company’s website 
https://www.chitrakutholdings.com. 
As on March 31, 2019, no complaint has been received by the Company from any directors or 
employees of the Company with respect to any wrongdoings that may have an adverse impact on the 
Company’s image or financials of the Company. 
 
CEO/CFO certification 
The CEO and CFO have certified to the Board with regard to the financial statements and other 
matters as required under the Listing Regulations. 



 
Auditors’ certificate on corporate governance 
The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditors regarding compliance with the 
provisions relating to corporate governance laid down in the Listing Regulations. 
This certificate is annexed to the Directors’ Report. 
 
Compliances regarding insider trading 
Pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Board 
approved code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders (‘code of conduct’) and 
a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
(‘code of fair disclosure’). The code of conduct and code of fair disclosure framed by the Company 
have helped in ensuring compliance with the requirements. 
 
Compliance of mandatory requirements under the Listing Regulations 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. 
 
Modified opinion in the audit report 
The Company confirms that its financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion. 
 
Separate posts of Whole-time Director/CFO/Secretary 
The Company has appointed separate persons to the post of Whole-time Director, Chief Financial 
Officer and Company Secretary. 
 
Reporting of internal auditor 
The internal auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 no fraud was reported by auditors of the 
Company to the Audit Committee during FY 2018-2019. 
 
A Cash Flow Statement for FY 2018-2019 is attached to the Balance Sheet. 
 
The Company has a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. There was no case of 
sexual harassment reported during FY 2018-2019. 
 
The Company has formulated an Archival Policy for ensuring compliance with the provisions under 
Regulation 30(8) of the Regulations for protection, maintenance and archival of the Events or 
Information disclosed to the stock exchange(s) which are also hosted on its website. 
 
The Board of Directors of the company have laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and 
Senior Management personnel of the Company in compliance with Regulation 17(5) of The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Company has a Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors in compliance with 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Company has in place a Policy on Determination of Materiality of Event or Information in 
pursuance of the requirements of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 



 
The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a policy on materiality of Related Party 
Transactions and dealing with Related Party Transactions. The policy is in line with requirement of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and The Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 
The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy in compliance with Section 134 (3) (n) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(9)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Company to develop and implement a Risk 
Management Policy / Plan and to lay down risk assessment and minimisation procedures. 
 
Secretarial standards of ICSI 
Pursuant to the approval from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI) has, on 14 June 2017, revised the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the 
Board of Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings (SS–2) effective from 1 October 2017. 
The Company is compliant with the same. 
 
9. DETAILS OF LAST 3 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS 
    ------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Information about last three Annual General Meeting  
 
     Year  Date  Time  Location (Registered Office) 
 
     
     2016    30.09.2016     11:00  A.M. 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016             
 
     2017    20.09.2017     11:00  A.M. 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016             
 
     2018    29.09.2018     11:00  A.M. 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016             
 
Details of special resolution(s) passed at the last three years’ annual general meetings (AGM) and 
postal ballot: 
 
I. Special resolutions passed at the previous three annual general meetings: 
At the 28th AGM held on 30th September, 2016, no special resolution was passed. 
At the 29th AGM held on 20th September, 2017, no special resolution was passed. 
At the 30th AGM held on 29th September, 2018, no special resolution was passed. 
 
II. Special resolutions passed through postal ballot during FY 2018-2019: 

a. Re-appointment of Shri Mahendra Kumar Pandya (DIN: 00007526) as an Independent 
Director 

b. Re-appointment of Shri Ashok Kumar Jain (DIN: 00007535) as an Independent Director 
 
III. No special resolution is proposed to be passed through postal ballot at this annual general 
meeting. 
 
 
10. DISCLOSURE 
     ------------------- 



A summary statement of transactions with related parties was placed periodically before the audit 
committee during the year. During the year under review there were no materially significant related 
party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Suitable 
disclosures have been made in the financial statements, together with the management’s explanation 
in the event of any treatment being different from that prescribed in accounting standards. 
 
There is no non-compliance by the company on any  matters  related  to Capital  market. Hence the 
question of penalties or strictures being imposed by SEBI or the Stock Exchange does not arise.  
 
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment : In the preparation of financial statements, the company has 
followed the treatment as prescribed in the Accounting Standards. 
 
Risk Management : The company has a defined Risk Management framework. The company has laid 
down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures. 
 
Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. : There were no proceeds from 
public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. during the financial year. 
 
11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
    ------------------------------------------- 
The unaudited Quarterly results of the Company are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchange and 
published in News Papers in accordance with  the Listing Regulations. 
 
12. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
      -------------------------------------------- 
A. Annual General Meeting 
Date – 30th September, 2019 
Time - 11:00 A.M. 
Venue- 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 016 
 
B. Financial Calender 1st April to 31st March Provisional : Will be published during 
 
Result for Quarter ending June 30, 2019   : On or before 14th August, 2019 
 
Result for Quarter ending September 30, 2019  : On or before 14th November, 2019 
 
Result for Quarter ending December 31, 2019  : On or before 14th February, 2020 
 
Result for Year ending March 31, 2020   : On or before 30th May, 2020 
 
C. Book Closure 
 
The Register of members and Share Transfer Book will remain closed from 24th day of September, 
2019 to 30th day of September, 2019 (both days inclusive) on account of Annual General Meeting. 
 
D. Dividend   
No dividend is recommended for the year. 
 



E. Listing at Stock Exchange 
    The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. 
    Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 
 
F. Stock Code                                                      
    The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd.  :   10013176 
    Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited  :   CHITRAKUT 
 
G.  ISIN Number : INE228E01011 
 
H.  Depository Connectivity : NSDL and CDSL 
 
I.  STOCK MARKET DATA 
There was no trading in the shares of the Company during the financial year.. 
 
J. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
Transfer of shares are registered and processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents within 
fifteen days from the date of receipt if the relevant documents are complete in all respects. 
 
13. REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENTS 
     ------------------------------------------------- 

Name                                 Address 
Niche Technologies (P) Ltd.          3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor,  

         (For Physical and Demat Shares)       Room No.7A & 7B, Kolkata - 700017                                    
 

14. COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
     ----------------------------------- 
Smt Nitu Goel is presently acting as the compliance officer in accordance with the provisions of the 
Listing Regulations. Her contact details are as under: 
Address: 1/1, Camac Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata – 700 016  
Tel No.: 033-22296351 / 6355 
E-mail: gmchl@rediffmail.com 
 
15.  DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.03.2019 
      --------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

No. of Equity Shares 
Held 

No. of Share 
holders

% of Share 
holders

No. of Shares 
held 

% of Share 
holding

Upto                500 
     501  to      1000 
   1001  to      5000 
   5001  to    10000 
 10001  to    50000 
 50001  to  100000  
100001  and  above 

900
153

7
1
6

12
19

 81.9672
 13.9344

0.6375
0.0911
0.5464
1.0929
1.7305

450000 
98700 
30000 
10000 

230000 
1049100 
5452198 

 

6.1475
1.3484
0.4098
0.1366
3.1421

14.3320
74.4836
 

Totals 1098 100.0000 7319998 100.000
 
16. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2019 
     --------------------------------------------------------------- 



Category No. of Share 
held 

% of Share 
holding 

Indian Promoters 
Domestic Companies 
Resident Individuals 

1651300 
5039998 
628700 

22.56 
68.85 
8.59 

 7319998 100.000 
 
17. DEMATERLIZATION OF SHARES  
     ---------------------------------------------- 
16,51,300 shares have been  dematerialised upto 31.03.2019 which is 22.56 percent of the total 
shares of the Company.  
 
18. BREAK-UP OF SHARES IN PHYSICAL AND DEMAT SEGMENT (As on 31.03.2019) 
      ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Segment No.of 
Shareholders 

% to total 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held % to total Shares 

Physical 
Demat 

1083 
    15 

98.63 
  1.37 

5668698 
1651300 

77.44 
22.56 

Total 1098 100.00 7319998 100.00 
 
 
19. OUTSTANDING GDRs/ADRs/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS,  
      CONVERSION DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY 
     ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Not applicable as the Company has not issued any such instruments. 
 
 
20. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE 
     ------------------------------------------------- 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 
Chitrakut Holdings Limited 
1/1, Camac Street,  
3rd Floor, 
Kolkata – 700 016 
Tel. No. (033) 2229-6351/55 

 



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
Industry Overview 
 
Financial year 2018-19 (FY2019) began with an expectation of higher growth as the economy 
seemed to have overcome the teething troubles of the nation-wide roll out of the Goods and 
Services Tax (GST). However, a rise in the current account deficit (CAD), concerns relating to 
rising non-performing assets (NPAs) and decline in liquidity coupled with hardening interest rates 
contributed to uncertainties around a higher GDP growth rate. 
 
The second advance estimates of national income for FY2019 released by the Central Statistics 
Office (CSO) on 28 February 2019 showed that the economy could not continue the expected 
growth momentum. GDP growth in the third quarter of FY2019 reduced to 6.6% after clocking 8% 
and 7% growth in the first and second quarter of FY2019 respectively. The CSO estimates GDP 
growth in FY2019 at 7% compared to 7.2% in FY2018. 
 
On the back of a widening trade deficit, the CAD increased to 2.6% of GDP during April-December 
2018 — up from 1.8% in April-December 2017. There was a net outflow of USD 17.5 billion of 
foreign currency reserves in April-December 2018 versus a net inflow of USD 30.3 billion over the 
same period a year earlier. 
 
The good news was inflation. During the second half of FY2019, the consumer price index (CPI) 
steadfastly remained below the RBI’s medium-term target of 4%, reaching a 19-month low of 1.9% 
in January 2019. It picked up marginally in February to 2.6%, albeit supported by a weak base and 
uptick in prices of some food categories. The RBI has projected headline inflation to remain soft in 
the near term: 2.4% in Q4 FY2019, 2.9% to 3% in H1 FY2020, and 3.5% to 3.8% in H2 FY2020. It 
did, however, acknowledge the monsoon risk from El Niño conditions and highlighted uncertainties 
in oil price movement. 
 
Systemic liquidity swung between surplus and deficit during FY2019, with the RBI needing to 
intervene to smoothen liquidity flows. This liquidity stress was compounded thanks to major debt 
defaults of a systemically important NBFC. The default resulted in a virtual drying up of the money 
markets; and access to funds for borrowers such as NBFCs and HFCs were deeply impacted. The 
consequent increase in interest rates for fresh borrowings in Q3 FY2019 resulted in business 
disruptions. While H2 FY2019 has been an extremely challenging period for both NBFCs and 
HFCs, these disruptions have not yet completely settled. 
 
FY 2019-2020, therefore, could be a challenging year. The positive is the general sense that India 
should see higher GDP growth, subject to normal monsoons. 
 
Market Scenario 
 
NBFCs continued to grow their share in the financial services industry. Data published by the RBI 
in its Financial Stability Report dated 31 December 2018 show that NBFCs have outperformed 
scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) on growth in advances, asset quality and profitability. This 
growth momentum of NBFCs should result in their share in the financial services sector increasing 
in the near future. 
 
CHL enjoyed yet another strong year of performance aided by a diversified product mix, robust 
volume growth, prudent operating costs and effective risk management. 
 
 
 



Analysis of performance for the year 
 
The detailed highlights of the performance are produced elsewhere in the Director’s Report. 
 
Opportunities and Threats 
 
As an NBFC, CHL is exposed to credit, liquidity and interest rate risk. It has continued to invest in 
talent, processes and emerging technologies for building advanced risk and underwriting 
capabilities. Sustained efforts to strengthen the risk framework and portfolio quality have yielded 
consistently better outcomes for the Company. 
 
CHL identifies various operational risks inherent in its business model. The operational risks are 
risk of a loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people and systems, or from 
external events. 
 
CHL continues to evolve on a journey where analytics and technology are integral to business 
strategy. It uses analytics capabilities for making appropriate product offerings to customers, 
marketing campaign management, risk management and customer experience. 
 
 
Internal control system and their adequacy 
 
The Company has an effective internal control system, commensurate with its size and nature to 
ensure smooth business operation, including assurance of recording all the transaction details, 
ensuring regulatory compliance and protecting the Company assets from any kind of loss or misuse. 
It evaluates the adequacy of all internal controls and processes, and ensures strict adherence to 
clearly laid down processes and procedures as well as to the prescribed regulatory and legal 
framework. The Company has further strengthened its internal audit function by investing in 
domain specialists to increase effectiveness of controls. The Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls. 
 
Fulfilment of the RBI’s norms and standards 
 
CHL fulfils norms and standards laid down by the RBI relating to the recognition and provisioning 
of non-performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity ratio, etc. 
 
Development in human resources 
 
The Company continues to lay emphasis on people, its most valuable resource. In an increasingly 
competitive market for human resources, it seriously focuses on attracting and retaining the right 
talent. It provides equal opportunity to employees to deliver results. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objectives, predictions may be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws 
and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward looking statements 
contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainties.  
 



 
CEO CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Rajendra Kumar Saraogi, Whole Time Director, certify to the Board that: 
a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31st 

March’2019 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief : 

i. These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading ; 

   ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and comply 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
b) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 

year ended 31st March’2019 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct. 

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and I have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if 
any, of which I am aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee 

i. Significant changes in internal control during the year; 

ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements and 

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal 
control system. 

For Chitrakut Holdings Limited 
                   
 
  
Rajendra Kumar Saraogi 
Whole Time Director 
Place : Kolkata                      
Date : The 30th day of May, 2019



 
 
 
 
 
 

CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Ruchi Jain, Chief Financial Officer, certify to the Board that: 
a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31st 

March’2019 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief : 

i. These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading ; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and comply 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 
b) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 

year ended 31st March’2019 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of 
conduct. 

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and I have disclosed 
to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 
controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify 
these deficiencies. 

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee 

i. Significant changes in internal control during the year; 

ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and 

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal 
control system. 

For Chitrakut Holdings Limited 
                   
 
  
Ruchi Jain 
Chief Financial Officer 
Place : Kolkata                      
Date : The 30th day of May, 2019 



 
 
DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF 
THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
To  
The Members of  
Chitrakut Holdings Limited 
 
I, Rajendra Kumar Saraogi, Executive Director of the Company declare that all Board Members and 
Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019. 
 
 
 
Place : Kolkata             Rajendra Kumar Saraogi 
Date :  30.05.2019        Whole-time Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
TO  
THE MEMBERS OF  
CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Chitrakut 
Holdings Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as stipulated in regulations 17, 18, 19, 
20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub–regulation (2) of regulation 46 and 
para C , D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as 
"SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015"). 
 
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Company's 
Management. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as 
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 
 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 

                                                     For Vasudeo & Associates 
Chartered  Accountants 

 
 
 
Place : Kolkata                                   (Vasudeo Agarwal) 
Date : The 30th day of May, 2019                                        (Partner)                                   
      
 
 
  
 
 
 



 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
To  
The Members of  
CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED  
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS 
LIMITED  (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the  financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2019, and Profit, and cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the   financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the code of ethics. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters  
 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 

 

 



 
 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Auditor’s Response – Principal Audit 
Procedures 

Compliance with the requirements of the 
Non- Banking Financial Company- Non 
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking 
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016  

Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal controls and substantive procedures, 
as follows :- 

The Company, being an NBFC, is governed by 
the aforesaid Directions of RBI and compliance 
with the same is of paramount importance. 
The Prudential Regulations of the aforesaid 
Directions, especially those relating to income 
recognition, asset classification and 
provisioning have a direct bearing on the 
Company’s results and financial position, as 
reflected by the  financial statements. 

Selected a sample of continuing and new loan 
contracts  (if any) and performed the following 
procedures:  

• Read, analysed and identified the distinct 
performance obligations in these contracts viz. 
payment of interest, repayment of principal 
etc. 

• Compared these performance obligations 
with that identified and recorded by the 
Company in the books of accounts  

• In case performance obligations were not 
met, whether the consequential impact as 
envisaged under income recognition, asset 
classification and provisioning norms in the 
said Directions were reflected in the books of 
accounts by the Company. 

Being an NBFC, prudential regulation of RBI 
Directions on classification of Investments and 
Income from Investments have a direct 
bearing on Companies financial position. 

► Verify the investment policy framed by the 
Board of Directors  

► Verify whether investments have been 
appropriately classified between current and 
long term investments per the investment 
policy  

► Verify whether the valuation of investments 
has been carried out in accordance with the 
NBFC Prudential Norms 

 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these   financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards 



 
 

 

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the   financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 



 
 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 



 
 

 

 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid   financial statements comply with the accounting standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. 
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us; 
 

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position.  

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

 
iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory 
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2019:  
 
1) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative   details and situation of fixed assets;  

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner,  
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant 
to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material discrepancies between the books records 
and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.  

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are 
held in the name of the company.  

 

2) (a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable 
intervals.  
 

(b) As explained to us, no material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification 
of inventories as compared to the book records. 

 

3)  The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to parties 
covered in the registered maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Hence, the question of reporting whether the terms and conditions of loans are prejudicial 
to the interests of the company, whether reasonable steps for recovery of overdues of such 
loans are taken does not arise. 

 

4)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.  

 

5)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 
with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.  

 



 
 

 

6)  As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities 
carried on by the company.  

 

7)  (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 
Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities 
except Profession Tax Liability. 

  
 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 

payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more 
than six months from the date on when they become payable except Profession Tax of Rs. 
2100/- 

 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income 
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on 
account of any dispute.  

 

8)  According to records of the company, the company has not borrowed from financial 
institutions or banks or government issued debentures till 31st March 2019.  Hence in our 
opinion, the questions of reporting on defaults in repayment of loans or borrowing to a 
financial institutions bank, government or dues to debentures. 

 

9)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.  

10)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.  

 

11)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Companies Act;  

 

12)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 
4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

 

13)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance 



 
 

 

with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.  

 

14)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.  

 

15)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

 

16)  The Company is a Non Banking Financial Company and is required to be registered under 
section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly have obtained the 
required registration certificate from the Reserve Bank of India.  
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements 
of CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED  
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CHITRAKUT 
HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.  
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.  
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF  
CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED  
 

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by 
CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2019, as stipulated in Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the 
Listing Agreement of the said Company with the stock exchanges. 
 

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Company’s management. Our examination was limited to the review of procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 
regulations of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 
on the financial statements of the Company. 
 

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing regulations. 
 

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
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(Amount in ` )

SHAREHOLDERS' FUND

Share Capital 2.1 7,31,99,980.00             7,31,99,980.00             

Reserves and Surplus 2.2 15,96,37,165.77           15,88,49,106.93           

Non-Current Liabilities

Other Long Term Liabilities 2.3 12,02,400.00                12,02,400.00                

Long Term Provisions 2.4 79,75,578.00                37,77,674.00                

Current Liabilities

Short Term Borrowings 2.5 25,299.00                     -                                

Other Current Liabilities 2.6 1,11,451.00                  6,09,429.74                  

Short-  Term Provisions 2.7 4,64,172.00                  4,65,412.00                  

Total 24,26,16,045.77           23,81,04,002.67           

Non - Current Assets

Fixed Assets

  Property, Plant & Equipment 2.8 4,70,240.25                  6,60,721.25                  

Non-Current Investments 2.9 1,51,44,381.77             1,17,44,381.77             

Deferred Tax Assets 2.10 1,28,387.00                  1,22,695.00                  

Long Term Loans & Advances 2.11 1,02,03,608.00             1,22,03,608.00             

Current Assets

Inventories 2.12 1,97,69,533.53             1,65,21,118.37             

Trade Recievables 2.13 2,37,725.00                  69,039.00                     

Cash & Bank Balances 2.14 77,97,638.22                97,78,455.28                

Short- Term Loans And Advances 2.15 18,88,64,532.00           18,70,03,984.00           
Total 24,26,16,045.77           23,81,04,002.67           

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes to Financial Statements

1

2 -                               -                                

Notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements

As per attached report on even date
For VASUDEO & ASSOCIATES

Firm Reg. No. 319299E

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CA. VASUDEO AGARWAL Director Whole Time Director

(Partner) K.C. Saraogi R.K.Saraogi

M.No- 054784 DIN:00007512 DIN: 00007503

Place : Kolkata

Date  : The 30th Day of May, 2019 CFO Company Secretary

Ruchi Jain Nitu Goel

For and on Behalf of the Board

 As at 

31st March 2018 

 As at 

31st March 2019 

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS

Particulars
Note

No.

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765



(Amount in ` )

REVENUE :

Revenue from Operations 2.16 4,43,29,493.82         3,22,07,361.22            

Other Income 2.17 55,31,832.47            41,86,433.73               

Total Revenue 4,98,61,326.29         3,63,93,794.95            

Expenses:

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 2.18 3,28,93,568.77         2,94,49,841.78            
(Increase) / Decrease of Inventories of Traded Goods 2.19 (32,48,415.16)          (1,28,47,906.57)           

Employee Benefit Expense 2.20 19,50,000.00            17,84,000.00               

Finance Cost 2.21 28,110.00                1,30,020.00                 

Depreciation And Amortization Expense 2.22 1,90,481.00             3,14,088.00                 

Other Expenses 2.23 1,66,65,214.84         55,27,693.46               

Total Expenses 4,84,78,959.45         2,43,57,736.67            

Profit before exceptional items and tax 13,82,366.84            1,20,36,058.28            

Exceptional Items -                           -                               

Profit before tax 13,82,366.84            1,20,36,058.28            

Tax expense: 2.24

1) Current tax 6,00,000.00             28,50,000.00               

2) Deferred tax (5,692.00)                 (29,988.00)                   

3) Tax for Earlier Year -                           -                               

Profit(Loss) for the period 7,88,058.84             92,16,046.28               

Earning per equity share: 2.25

1) Basic (Equity Share Face Value ` 10/- each) 0.11                         1.26                             

2) Diluted (Equity Share Face Value ` 10/- each) 0.11                         1.26                             

Significant Accounting Policies 

Notes to Financial Statements

1 

2

Note : The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statement

As per attached report on even date

For VASUDEO & ASSOCIATES

Firm Reg. No. 319299E

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Director Whole Time DirectorWhole Time Director

CA. VASUDEO AGARWAL K.C. Saraogi R.K.Saraogi

(Partner) DIN:00007512 DIN: 00007503

M.No- 054784

Place : Kolkata CFO Company Secretary

 Date  : The 30th Day of May, 2019 Ruchi Jain Nitu Goel

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note

No.

 Year ended

31st March, 2019 

 Year ended

31st March, 2018 
Particulars

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765

For and on Behalf of the Board
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A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ (Loss) Adjustment before Tax & Extra Ordinary items 13,82,366.84          1,20,36,058.28         

Add/Less Adjustment for:

Depreciation 1,90,481.00            3,14,088.00              

Provision for Standard Asset (1,240.00)               (4,166.00)                  

Dividend on Investment (18,935.00)             (20,098.00)                

Provision for Non Performing Assets 41,97,904.00          9,22,526.00              

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 57,50,576.84          1,32,48,408.28         

Add/Less:- Adjustment for:

1. (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (32,48,415.16)        (1,28,47,906.57)       

2. (Increase)/Decrease in Current & Non Current Assets 1,39,452.00            3,61,614.00              

3. Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions (4,97,978.74)          (35,23,387.41)          

4. (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (1,68,686.00)          2,90,211.00              

Cash Generated from Operation 19,74,948.94          (24,71,060.70)          

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds) 6,00,000.00            28,50,000.00            

13,74,948.94          (53,21,060.70)          

B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend on Investment 18,935.00               20,098.00                 

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (34,00,000.00)        (18,00,000.00)          

Net Cash used in Investment Activities (33,81,065.00)        (17,79,902.00)          

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(Decrease) in Loan Liability 25,299.00               -                            

25,299.00               -                            

(19,80,817.06)        (71,00,962.70)          

Cash and cash eqivalents (Opening Balance) 97,78,455.28          1,68,79,417.98         

Cash and cash eqivalents (Closing Balance) 77,97,638.22          97,78,455.28            

-                         -                            

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For VASUDEO & ASSOCIATES

Firm Reg. No. 319299E

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CA. VASUDEO AGARWAL Director Whole Time Director

(Partner) K.C. Saraogi R.K.Saraogi

M.No- 054784 DIN:00007512 DIN: 00007503

Place : Kolkata CFO Company Secretary

Date  : The 30th Day of May, 2019 Ruchi Jain Nitu Goel

Net Increase in cash & cash equivalents(A+B+C)

For and on Behalf of the Board

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with   the  
 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP), including the Accounting 
Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, wherever applicable.  
 

The financial statement has been prepared under the historical cost convention using accrual 
method of accounting 
 

B. Use of Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
standards generally accepted in India requires judgments, estimates and assumptions to be 
made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to 
Contingent Assets and Contingent liabilities as on the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of Revenues and Expenses during reporting period. Management believes 
that the estimates used in the preparation of the Financial Statements are prudent and 
reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

 

C. Fixed Assets 

   All Fixed Assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. 
 

D.  Depreciation 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on written down value method. Depreciation 
is provided on based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 

E. Investments 

Investments are long term in nature and are stated at cost of acquisition. In the opinion of the 
management, the decline in the market value of investment is temporary in nature; hence no 
provision for diminution in the value of investments has been made.  

 

F. Inventories 

Shares and Securities purchased for trading purpose are shown as stock in shares and securities 
under the head Current Assets. Inventory is valued at cost or market price/break up value 
whichever is lower. 

 
G. Revenue Recognition 

 

Sales 

Income from Sale of Shares is recognised on the date of transaction. 

Interest Income  

Interest on Loan is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the outstanding 

amount and the applicable rate. 



 

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED 
CIN: L51909WB1988PLC044765 

 
 

H. Employee Benefits 

Payment of Gratuity Act is not applicable to the company as numbers of employees are less 

than the minimum required for applicability of Gratuity Act. 

 

I. Taxation 
  

Provision of Current tax is made with reference to taxable income computed for the accounting 
period for which the financial statements are prepared by applying the tax rate as applicable. 
The deferred tax charge is recognized using the enacted tax rate. Deferred tax Assets are 
recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can 
be realized. 
 

Deferred tax asset/liabilities are reviewed as at Balance sheet date based on the developments 

during the year and reassess assets/liabilities in terms of Accounting Standard – 22 issued by 

ICAI. 

J. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event 
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and 
are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. 
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are 
neither recognized nor disclosed in the notes to financial statements. 
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2.1 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 

73,50,000 Equity Shares of  ` 10 each 7,35,00,000.00     7,35,00,000.00     

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 

73,19,998 Equity Shares of  ` 10 each fully paid up 7,31,99,980.00     7,31,99,980.00     

2.1.1 Terms attached to equity shares

2.1.2

Particulars No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginning of the period 73,19,998             73,19,998             

Add: Issued during the period -                        -                        

Outstanding at the end of reporting date 73,19,998             73,19,998             

2.1.3

Name of the Shareholder
 Number of 

Shares held 

 % of 

Shareholding 

 Number of 

Shares held 

 % of 

Shareholding 

Larry Dealers Private Limited 4,16,666         5.69                      4,16,666     5.69                      

Netikta Vyaapar Private Limited 6,50,000         8.88                      6,50,000     8.88                      

Bipasha Vyaapar Private Limited 5,50,000         7.51                      5,50,000     7.51                      

2.1.4

2.2 RESERVE & SURPLUS

A) SECURITIES PREMIUM

Opening Balance 8,60,00,020.00     8,60,00,020.00     

Add: During the Year -                        -                        

Closing Balance 8,60,00,020.00     8,60,00,020.00     

B) STATUTORY RESERVE 

Opening Balance 1,53,36,865.00     1,34,93,656.00     

Add: During the Year 1,57,612.00          18,43,209.00        
Closing Balance 1,54,94,477.00     1,53,36,865.00     

C) SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)

Opening Balance 5,75,12,221.93     5,01,39,384.65     

Add: During the Year (From Statement of Profit & Loss) 7,88,058.84          92,16,046.28        

5,83,00,280.77     5,93,55,430.93     

Less: Transfer to Reserve Fund 1,57,612.00          18,43,209.00        

Closing Balance 5,81,42,668.77     5,75,12,221.93     

 15,96,37,165.77   15,88,49,106.93   

2.2.1 20% of Profit after Tax has been transferred to Reserve Fund as per section 45(IC) of the RBI Act, 1934

Pursuant to scheme of amalgmation, during the financial year 2012-2013,  43,19,998 Equity Shares were alloted 

to the shareholders of Paradise Tie Up Private Limited (i.e. without payment received in Cash)

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding 

TOTAL ( A + B + C )

The company has only one class of shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder 

of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity shares

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765
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CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765

2.3 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Unsecured

Security Deposit 12,02,400.00        12,02,400.00        

12,02,400.00        12,02,400.00        

2.4 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for NPA 79,75,578.00        37,77,674.00        

79,75,578.00        37,77,674.00        

2.4.1

2.4.2

2.4.3

2.5 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From Related Party 25,299.00             -                        

25,299.00             -                        

2.6 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities for Expenses 46,500.00             5,73,357.74          

Profession Tax Payable 4,200.00               -                        

TDS Payable 21,071.00             -                        

GST Payable 39,680.00             36,072.00             

1,11,451.00          6,09,429.74          

2.7 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 4,64,172.00          4,65,412.00          

2.7.1

2.9 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Quantity Amount in ( ` ) Quantity Amount in ( ` )

i) Investment in Equity Instrument

a) Quoted Shares

Reliance InfraLtd. (Formerly Reliance 

Energy) 250                 3,12,712.50          250             3,12,712.50          

DSQ Software Ltd. 5,000              33,450.00             5,000          33,450.00             

Mishka Finance & Trading Ltd. 52,500            3,45,975.00          52,500        3,45,975.00          

Pine Animation Ltd. 30,000            7,68,000.00          30,000        7,68,000.00          

Unitech Limited 10,000            4,04,000.00          10,000        4,04,000.00          
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 368                 1,33,514.27          368             1,33,514.27          
Tata Consultancy Services Limited 

(Bonus) 368                 -                        -             -                        

Total ( a ) 98,486            19,97,651.77        98,118        19,97,651.77        

 Loan of ` 25,00,000/- has been  considered as Non Performing Asset. Hence 30% provision has been made.

(Non Trade , At cost less provision for 

other than temporary dimunition)

2018-2019 2017-2018

 Loan of ` 71,25,578/- has been considered as Doubtful. Hence 100% provision has been made.

 Loan of ` 5,00,000/- has been  considered as Non Performing Asset. Hence 20% provision has been made.

Contingent Provision against Standard Assets have been provided @ 0.25% of Total Standard Assets (Loan)
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CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765

b) Unquoted Shares 

Arch Enclave Pvt. Ltd. 2,500              12,50,000.00        2,500          12,50,000.00        

Aryadeep Conclave Pvt. Ltd. 50,000            5,50,000.00          50,000        5,50,000.00          

Limton Electro Optics Pvt. Ltd. 32,000            4,80,000.00          32,000        4,80,000.00          

Oriental Apartments Pvt. Ltd. 20,750            10,58,250.00        20,750        10,58,250.00        

Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd. 20,644            47,640.00             20,644        47,640.00             

Total ( b ) 1,25,894         33,85,890.00        1,25,894     33,85,890.00        

Total i ( a+b ) 2,24,380         53,83,541.77        2,24,012     53,83,541.77        

ii) Investment in Mutual Fund

Reliance Top 200 Fund- Growth Plan 1,61,330.483  52,00,000.00        57,246        18,00,000.00        

Total - ii 1,61,330.483  52,00,000.00        57,246        18,00,000.00        

iii) Investment in Property

Property at 64B, Ballygunge Circular Road,Kolkata 45,60,840.00        45,60,840.00        
Total - iii 45,60,840.00        45,60,840.00        

Total - ( i+ ii+ iii ) 1,51,44,381.77     1,17,44,381.77     

Market Value of Quoted Shares 19,31,197.20        23,57,837.20        

Market Value of Mutual Fund 57,18,778.43        17,75,635.05        

2.10 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

On Depreciation 1,28,387.00          1,22,695.00          

2.11 LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

(Unsecured, Considerd Doubtful)

Loan to Others  (Refer Note No. 2.4) 1,01,25,578.00     1,21,25,578.00     

Security Deposit 78,030.00             78,030.00             

1,02,03,608.00     1,22,03,608.00     

2.12 INVENTORIES

(Valued at Cost or Market Price whichever is lower)

(i) In Equity Shares (Quoted) Qty Amount Qty Amount

Aditya Birla Money 1,500              70,725.00             1,500          75,750.00             

Bhel 500                 37,475.00             500             40,675.00             

Bhel(Bonus) 250                 18,737.50             250             20,337.50             

Central Bank of India 800                 28,520.00             800             57,880.00             

EIH Ltd. 727                 1,49,725.65          727             1,15,665.70          

GMR Infra 3,500              69,300.00             3,500          58,975.00             

GVK Power & Infrastructure 250                 1,912.50               250             3,525.00               

HCC 2,500              37,500.00             2,500          55,500.00             

HDIL 1,000              25,850.00             1,000          38,600.00             

Indian Hotel 1,000              1,54,900.00          1,000          1,29,400.00          

IOC 1,450              2,36,132.50          1,450          2,56,070.00          

IOC (Bonus) 4,350              7,08,397.50          4,350          7,68,210.00          
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CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765

IVRCL 250                 200.00                  250             750.00                  

IVRCL  (Bonus) 250                 200.00                  250             750.00                  

Jaiprakash Associates 2,750              14,987.50             2,750          51,975.00             

Jaiprakash Associates (Bonus) 750                 4,087.50               750             14,175.00             

Lanco Infratech Ltd. 500                 550.00                  500             550.00                  
Piramal Phytocare (Frmly : Piramal Life 

Sciences) 1,000              36,850.00             1,000          38,450.00             

Reliance Capital 850                 1,73,825.00          850             3,59,805.00          

Reliance Home Finance Limited 850                 24,437.50             850             50,660.00             

Reliance Communications 1,250              5,187.50               1,250          27,187.50             

Royal Orchid Hotel 2,000              2,30,600.00          2,000          3,17,200.00          

Sail 1,500              80,625.00             1,500          1,05,300.00          

SBI (New FV Re 1/-) 4,000              12,83,000.00        4,000          9,99,600.00          

Shree Renuka Sugar 1,000              10,150.00             1,000          15,350.00             

SPML Infra Ltd. 3,000              89,700.00             3,000          2,65,350.00          

Suzlon 6,250              38,437.50             6,250          66,875.00             

UB Holdings 500                 5,500.00               500             5,500.00               

Total (a) 44,527            35,37,513.15        44,527        39,40,065.70        

(ii) In Mutual Fund 

HDFC Core & Satelite Fund -                  -                        4,40,781     82,69,052.76        

HDFC Equity Dund - D 1,35,564.421  69,77,907.44        -             -                        

Reliance Growth Fund - DP 1,58,114.016  92,54,112.94        -             -                        

HDFC Top 200 Fund -                  -                        90,900        43,11,999.91        

Total (b) 2,93,678.437  1,62,32,020.38     5,31,681     1,25,81,052.67     

Total (a+b) 3,38,205.437  1,97,69,533.53     5,76,208     1,65,21,118.37     

2.13 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Debts Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months 69,039.00             -                        

Other Debts 1,68,686.00          69,039.00             

2,37,725.00          69,039.00             

2.14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a) Balances with Bank

    On Current Account 57,99,281.61        35,40,925.67        

Cheque in Hand 19,76,400.00        60,00,444.00        

b) Cash in hand (As certified by the Management) 21,956.61             2,37,085.61          

77,97,638.22        97,78,455.28        

2.15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Loan to Others 18,56,68,828.00   18,61,64,620.00   

Advance to Service Provider 2,250.00               -                        

Prepaid Expenses -                        2,858.00               

GST Input Rec 9,042.00               

31,84,412.00        8,36,506.00          

18,88,64,532.00   18,70,03,984.00   

Balances with Revenue Authorities

(Net Of Provision of ` 80.10 Lacs & Prev.Year ` Nil Lacs)



Note No. 2.8 - Property, Plant & Equipment
Tangible Assets

PARTICULARS As at Disposal/ As at As at For the Adjustment As at As at As at

01.04.18 Deduction 31.03.19 01.04.18 Year for Disposal 31.03.19 31.03.19 31.03.18

Furniture & Fixture 3,32,655.00    -          -            3,32,655.00    2,39,580.00    22,201.00     -                2,61,781.00    70,874.00     93,075.00     

Computer 2,66,481.25    -          -            2,66,481.25    2,49,390.00    7,578.00       -                2,56,968.00    9,513.25       17,091.25     

Plant & Machinery 5,45,000.00    -          -            5,45,000.00    2,22,861.00    58,319.00     -                2,81,180.00    2,63,820.00  3,22,139.00  

Office Equipment 10,06,340.00  -          -            10,06,340.00  7,77,924.00    1,02,383.00  -                8,80,307.00    1,26,033.00  2,28,416.00  

Total 21,50,476.25  -          -            21,50,476.25  14,89,755.00  1,90,481.00  -                16,80,236.00  4,70,240.25  6,60,721.25  

Previous Year 21,50,476.25  -          -            21,50,476.25  11,75,667.00  3,14,088.00  -                14,89,755.00  6,60,721.25  -                

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

 Addition 

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765
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2.16 REVENUE FROM OPERATION

Sale of Products

Sale Of Share & Securities 2,68,55,618.82   1,46,26,484.22    

Interest Income

4,43,29,493.82   3,22,07,361.22    

2.17 OTHER INCOME

Dividend Income

Dividend on Stock 29,36,012.47      16,16,473.73       

Dividend on Long Term Investment 18,935.00           20,098.00            

Other Non-Operating Income

Rent (TDS - 2,57,465/- Prev. Year ` 2,40,480/-) 25,75,645.00      24,04,800.00       

Provision for Standard Asset 1,240.00             4,166.00              

Miscellaneous Income -                      1,40,896.00         
55,31,832.47      41,86,433.73       

2.18 PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

Shares & Securities 3,28,93,568.77   2,94,49,841.78    

2.19

Inventories at the beginning of the year 1,65,21,118.37   36,73,211.80       

Inventories at the end of the year 1,97,69,533.53   1,65,21,118.37    

(32,48,415.16)     (1,28,47,906.57)   

2.20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary and Bonus 19,50,000.00      17,84,000.00       

(Include Remmuneration to KMP  ` 3,60,000/- ,  P.Y. ` 3,40,000/-  )

2.21 FINANCE COST

Interest Paid

On Unsecured Loan 28,110.00           1,30,020.00         

28,110.00           1,30,020.00         

2.22 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation 1,90,481.00        3,14,088.00         

(INCREASE) / DECREASE OF INVENTORIES OF 

TRADED GOODS

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

1,74,73,875.00   1,75,80,877.00    
Interest on Loan

 (TDS ` 17,46,942/- Prev. Year ` 16,62,583/-)

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765
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2.23 OTHER EXPENSES

a) Rates and taxes, excluding, taxes on  income 10,16,338.00      5,44,206.50         

b) Payment to Auditors

i) As Audit Fees 23,600.00           23,600.00            

ii) As Tax Audit Fees 5,900.00             5,900.00              

iii) For Other Matter -                      5,470.00              

c) Miscellaneous expenses 11,83,710.84      9,75,010.46         

d) Provision For NPA 41,97,904.00      9,22,526.00         

e) Provision for Standard Asset -                      -                       

f) Rent 12,000.00           12,000.00            

g) Donation 1,00,00,000.00   25,00,000.00       

h) Professional Fees 1,61,700.00        3,57,020.00         

i) Listing Fee 49,100.00           96,550.00            

j) Repair & Maintenance 14,962.00           85,410.50            
1,66,65,214.84   55,27,693.46       

2.24 TAX EXPENSE

a) Current Tax

Provision for Taxation 6,00,000.00        28,50,000.00        

b) Deferred Tax 5,692.00             29,988.00            

2.25 EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE

Net Profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss 7,88,058.84        92,16,046.28       

 Number of Equity Shares 73,19,998           73,19,998            

Earning Per Share  (Basic/ Diluted) 0.11                    1.26                     



 
CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LTD. 

CIN : L51909WB1988PLC044765 
 

2. NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2019 
 

2.26 The Company has complied with the Prudential Norms as per NBFC's (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
1998 with regard to income recognition assets classification, accounting standard and provision for 
bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it. 
 

2.27 Related Party Disclosure 
Related Party disclosures as per the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 –“Related Party 
Disclosure” are given below – 

           a) Related Parties  

Key Management Personnel (KMP): 

Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saraogi (Whole-time Director), Mr. Kailash Chand Saraogi , Mrs. Meena Devi 
Jain (CFO) (Resigned on 31.03.2019), Ms Ruchi Jain (CFO) (Appointed on 31.03.2019) and  Miss 
Nitu Goel (Company Secretary) 

 b) Transaction with Related Parties: - 

                (` In Lacs) 

Name of the Party Relation Nature of 
Transaction 

Volume of 
Transaction 

Outstanding as on 

2018-19 2017-18 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Ganeshmal Mohanlal Associate Rent Given 0.12 0.12 --- --- 

G.M. Holding Pvt. Ltd. Associate Loan (Taken) 
Loan(Repaid) 
Interest(Paid) 

 

 220.00 
220.00 

    0.28 

 32.00 
32.00 

    1.22 

0.22 -- 

Sunshine  Fintrade  Pvt. 
Ltd 

Associate Loan (Taken) 
Loan (Repaid) 
Interest Paid 

 

-- 
-- 
-- 
 

1.00 
1.00 
0.08 

-- -- 

Rajendra Kumar Saraogi Whole-time 
Director 

Managerial 
Remuneration 

1.20 1.20 -- -- 

Meena Devi Jain Director & 
CFO 

Managerial 
Remuneration 

1.20 1.20 -- -- 

Nitu Goel Company 
Secretary 

Remuneration 1.20 1.00 -- -- 

 

2.28 Management has determined that there were no balances outstanding as at the beginning of the 
year and no transactions entered with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
Micro, Small and   Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, during the current year, based on 
the information available with the Company as at March 31, 2019. 
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NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2019 

 
2.29 Information about Primary Business Segment: 
                    (` In Lacs) 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Dealing in 
Shares & 
Securities 

Loan 
Financing 

Total Dealing in 
Shares & 
Securities 

Loan 
Financing 

Total 

A: REVENUE       

Total Revenue 268.56 174.74 443.30 146.26 175.81 322.07 

B: RESULT       

Segment Result (27.89) 174.46 146.57 (19.75) 174.51 154.76 

Less:  Unallocated Corporate     
Expenses net of unallocated 
income 

  132.62   34.40 

          Operating Profit -- -- 13.95 -- -- 120.36 

          Tax Expenses -- -- 6.07 -- -- 28.20 

          Net Profit -- -- 7.88 -- -- 92.16 

C: OTHER INFORMATION       

Segment Assets 303.54 1957.94 2261.48 237.05 1940.47 2177.52 

Unallocated Corporate Assets   164.68   203.52 

Total Assets   2426.16   2381.04 

Segment Liabilities -- 84.65 84.65 -- 16.68 16.68 

Unallocated Corporate 
Liabilities 

  13.13   43.87 

Total Liabilities   97.78   60.55 

Depreciation   3.14   3.14 

Non-cash Expenses other 
than depreciation 

  9.23   9.23 

 
2.30 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non Banking Financial Company as required in terms of 

paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company –Non- Systemically 
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is annexed separately. 

 
2.31    Quantitative Information for the year ended 31st March 2019   
 

Particulars 
 

Units 2018-2019  2017-2018 

Qty Amount(`) Qty Amount(`) 

Opening Stock 
Shares & Securities 
 
Purchases/Adj. 
Shares & Securities 
Mutual Fund 
 
Sales/Transfer 
Shares & Securities 
Mutual Fund 
 
Closing Stock 
Shares & Securities 
Mutual Fund 

 
Nos 
 
 
Nos 
Unit 
 
 
Nos 
Unit 
 
 
Nos 
Unit 

 
44527 

531680.57 
 

-- 
695080.600 

 
 

-- 
933082.734 

 
 

44527 
338205.437 

 
39,40,065.70 

125,81,052.67 
 

-- 
3,28,93,568.77 

 
 

-- 
2,68,55,618.82 

 
 

35,37,513.15 
1,62,32,020.38 

 
40527 

 
 

4000 
945261.839 

 
 

-- 
413581.268 

 
 

44527 
531680.57 

 
36,73,211.80 

 
 

-- 
294,49,841.78 

 
 

-- 
146,26,484.22 

 
 

39,40,065.70 
125,81,052.67 
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2.32 Presentation and disclosure of financial statements. 

 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever considered necessary. 
 
 
As per attached report on even date 

  
 

As per attached report on even date       

For VASUDEO & ASSOCIATES    On behalf of the board  

Firm Reg. No. 319299E       

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS       

        

        

CA. VASUDEO AGARWAL    Director  Whole Time Director 

(Partner)    K.C. Saraogi  R.K.Saraogi 

M.No- 054784    DIN:00007512  DIN: 00007503 
        

    
    Place : Kolkata   CFO Company Secretary 
Date  : The 30th Day of May, 2019    Ruchi Jain  Nitu Goel 

     



              ( ` in lakhs )

Liabilities Side :

(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest Amount Amount

accrued thereon but not paid : Outstanding Overdue

       (a) Debentures : Secured Nil Nil

      : Unsecured Nil Nil

       ( Other than falling within the meaning 

         of public deposits )

(b) Deferred Credits Nil Nil

(c) Term Loans Nil Nil

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 0.25                 Nil

(e) Commercial Paper Nil Nil

(f) Other Loans Nil Nil

Assets side

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables 

 [ Other than those included in (4) below ] :

(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured

(3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and

 hypothecation loans counting towards AFC activities :

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors.

(a)     Financial Lease

(b)     Operating Lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :

(a)     Assets on hire

(b)     Repossessed Assets.

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a)     Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b)     Loans other than (a) above

CHITRAKUT HOLDINGS LTD.
Annexure to the 

Balance sheet of a Non - Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

Particulars

Disclosure as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company –Non- 

Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Amount Outstanding

Nil

1957.94

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil



(4) Break - up of Investments :

Current Investments :

1 Quoted   :

(i) Shares :       (a)  Equity

         (b)  Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of Mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others 

2 Unquoted :

(I) Shares :       (a)  Equity

         (b)  Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of Mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others 

Long Term Investment  :

1 Quoted    :

(i)  Share  :      (a)   Equity

        (b)   Preference 

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others 

2 Unquoted :

(i) Shares :       (a)  Equity

         (b)  Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii) Units of Mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others 

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above 

Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties 

           (a) Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil

           (b) Companies in the same group Nil Nil Nil

           (c)Other related parties Nil Nil Nil

2. Other than related parties Nil 1957.94 1957.94

Total Nil 1957.94 1957.94

33.86

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

162.32

Nil

35.38

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

19.98

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

52.00

Nil

45.61

Amount net of provisions



(6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)

in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted ) :

Category

1. Related Parties 

           (a) Subsidiaries

           (b) Companies in the same group

           (c)Other related parties

2. Other than related parties   Quoted Shares

Unquoted Shares

Units of Mutual Funds

Others (Property)

Total

(7) Other Information

( i ) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

( ii ) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

( iii ) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes :

1

2

3

For VASUDEO & ASSOCIATES

Firm Reg. No. 319299E

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CA. VASUDEO AGARWAL Director Whole Time Director

(Partner) K.C. Saraogi R.K.Saraogi

M.No- 054784 DIN:00007512 DIN: 00007503

Place : Kolkata CFO Company Secretary

Date  : The 30th Day of May, 2019 Ruchi Jain Nitu Goel

For and on Behalf of the Board

-                                           

63.49

Nil

54.69

353.66

55.35

Nil Nil

Nil

0.48 0.48

219.51

45.61

or fair value or NAV Provisions )

Particulars Amount

349.14

33.38 33.38

Nil

214.32

45.61

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of 

investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of 

quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted investment should be disclosed 

irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in column (4) above.

63.49

101.26

-                                           

101.26

Market Value / Break up Book Value  ( Net of 

As defined in Paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits

(Reserve Bank ) Directions, 1998. 

Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the Non-Banking Financial (Non Deposit Accepting or

Holding ) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007. 
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